
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 

UN lE3R~) 
.... ~~ ~~ i?11J!J! 

THIRTY-THIRD sESSIONUN/c A GOtlECTIC ·~ 
Official Records* , : ~ 

SUI-1li1ARY RECORD OF '.:'HE 42nd : 1J~:CTI1~G 

SPECIAL POLITICAL COl•NITTEE 
42nd meeting 

held on 
'l'uesday, 5 December 1}78 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

Chairman: !1lr. PIZA ESCAL&J'rE (Costa Rica) 

CO~~TEJTS 

AGKWA ITEH 71: QUESTIO·\JS RELA'riNG 'I'O INFORI·1ATION (continued) 

(a) CO-OPERATIO:~ AND ASSIS'L'AJC£ U 'l'Ili /li'PLICATIOl:J rum r~IPROVE:'ftEN'l' OF ~IATIO.~AL 
IlJFORJviATIOi~ &W l•1ASS COivll•ill~HCA'l'ION SYS'l':C'1S FOR SOCIAL PROGRESS A.JJ 

DEVELOP!v!EN'I' ~ 

(b) FRE:i.i:Dm~ OF mFORI :A'l'IOl~: 

( i) DRAFT D:C~CLARATIOH OU FRSEDOr.! OF I~;FORHA'l'IO~~ 

( ii) DRAFT COHVEiJTIOiT 0'.1 FRbEDQi.1 OF rTFOR:·lATION 

(c) UniTED ,JATIO;JS PUBLIC I:'iFOR~·11\.TIOJ POLICIES !'1.ND ACTIVI'.;.'IES: 
SECRETARY -GEl·JERAL 

• Tlus record IS subject to correction. Corrections should be mcorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent wtthm one week of the date of publication to the Ch1ef, 
Official Records Ed1ting Section, room A-3550. 

CorrectiOns will be issued shortly after the end of the sesswn, m a separate fasc1cle for 
each Comm1ttee. 

78-5?003 

REPORT OF mrr, 
l..ll,..L.; 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/SPC/ 33/SR .l+2 
20 December 1978 
ElfGLISH 
ORIGilJAL: Fm;;·JCH 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Pac;e 2 

The meeting 'ivas called to order at 11.10 a.m. 

AGENDA ITE1'1 77: QUESTIONS RELATBG TO BJFORlrATION (continued) (A./ 33/144, 146, 240, 
270, 376; A/SPC/33/L.5; L.21) 

(a) CO-OP.8RATIOIT .Ai'JD ASSISTJUifC:C IN THI: APPLICATION 1\.ND I!IPROV:211EJ.ifT OF 1'JA'riOILLHJ 
IJi!FOHl1A'l1IO.iJ &JD MASS CO;IMUIHCATIOlJ SYSTE: lS FOR SOCIAL PROGI1ESS _/U\fD D.EVELOPI·ICNT 

(b) FREEDOI1 OF INFORW\.TIOH 

( i) DRAFT DECLARATION OrJ FREi:!.:DOl'1 OF I.NFORJ'1A.TION 

( ii) DRAFT CONVENTION ON FRE:CDOli OF BFORM .. A.TIO:!.IJ 

(c) U.!.TITED 1~ATIONS PUBLIC INFORJ'1ATION POLICIES A:.m ACTIVITIES: REPORT OF THE 
SECRETARY-GENERAL 

l. The CHAIRl1A] announced that two meetine;s -vrould be devoted to the e;eneral debate 
on i tern 77, He reminded members of the Committee that the list of speakers 1vas 
closed and dre"\v their attention to document A/SPC/33/L.21 ~Vhich contained the text 
of a draft resolution on item 77 (a) sponsored by Indonesia .. Malaysia, the 
Philippines, Singapore and Thailand. He also pointed out that the report of the 
Secretary~General had been distributed as document A./33/146. 

2. rlr. AKATAl'JI (Under--Secretary-General for Public Information), introducine; the 
report of the Secretary-General on United lJations public information policies and 
activities, said that it ~Vas the first time that the subject had come before the 
Special Political Committee. The report ~Vas submitted pursuant to a directive 
addressed to the Secretary-General by the General Assembly in 1975, requesting him 
to make ne'iV efforts to disseminate comprehensive information on the political, 
economic, social, cultural and humanitarian achievements and undertakings of the 
United ITations system, includine; the principles and aims of the ne'iV international 
economic order. He e;ave an account of the main current concerns of the Organization 
and related information activities, together w·ith a brief description of existing 
co-ordination machinery and future trends in the face of the continuing erosion of 
the resources devoted to public information. }.1..\Vare of the need to carry out its 
~Vorl~ in a creative manner, the Office of Public Information ~Vas constantly seeking 
to improve its services. It also took cognizance of the sugijestions and 
recommendations made by the Consultative Panel on Public Information and the 
Committee for Programme and Co-ordination, and had already taken certain initiatives 
in that connexion, including the preparation by a feature service of material in 
several languages on economic and social questions for publication in the third 
~Vorld, co-operation vri th the Pool of Iii on--Aligned Press Agencies, production of 
publications in additional languages, in some cases 'i·Tith financial assistance, in 
'iVhole or in part, from local NGO's or other sources, research on less expensive and 
speedier publication methods, in order to stay within budgetary limits, and the use 
of electronic word processing equipment. 

I ... 



.Gnglish 
Page 3 

(iTr. !~l,at~ni) 

3, \Jitl1 the proliferation of meetin:--;s both at ~1eaclquarters and abroad, and during 
major conferences and sessions of t11e General Asser~.bly ~ there •·ras a grouing probleE 
of staff to provide prP.ss covera,n;e, That problern. could be partially alleviated oy 
includ.inc; an information component in each conference bud[!,et so tlmt addi tio::1al 
staff could be made availaiJle on a temporary basis. AnotLer rc=medy vmuld be to fall 
back on the system of selective coverage, eliminatinc; coverage of those meetings 
':.rith little or no information value, HmveVE;r, tl:.e latter course of action had 
sensitive political ramifications vhich the Committee mic;ht vrish to considE;r, 

Lf, 'l1he vorld-vri.de netvrorl<: of United Nations information centres had gro1-m in the 
past year 1vi th the establishment of new centres in Eahrain 0 Lesotho and Portugal, 
Anotl1er neu centre vras in the process of beinG; established in Libya, l>l'hich 1-rould 
bring t~1e number of centres to 60 by the end of the current year, 20 in Africa, 
16 in Asia, the IIiddle Zast and Oceania, 13 in :2urope and ll in the 1\_rnericas. At 
the same time~ OPI had established relations 1-rith cth2r United 1Jations offices in 
the field, mostly those of U1'TDP resident representatives, which 1i'ithin liwitations, 
>vere ene;ac;ed in the distribution of its documentation to f?;OVernment ae;encies, the 
media) educational institutions and non~·governmental orga':lizations in countries 
~Vhere there vas no United .l'Tations Information C:entre, That system uas currently 
functioning in 55 countries. \Jith rec;ard to the strengthening of contacts bet'l>l'een 
the centres and national non-governmental or~anizations, the 1~eeting of Information 
Centre Directors held in Geneva in Aur~ust 1978, \vith the participation of the 
Secretary---General of the Horld Federation of united liations Associations, had made 
a positive contribution to that process. 

5. In recent years, there had been a steadily increasing demand from the 
information media for instantaneous neus material about events at the United ~T'ltions, 
particularly in the form of audio·-visual documentation, 'l'he Jl.adio and Visual 
Services Division was adjusting its priorities and redeployinG its resources 
accordingly, The increased emphasis on nevrs covera:;e rather than docu.rnentary 
material had led to closer co--operation between the Division and the vorld's major 
television nehrorks and video syndicators, Tl1e Radio Service had been able to 
provide broadcastinr:; organizations in Lember States with an increased amount of ne\-rs 
material of specific interest to them. There had also been an increase in t~1e 
number of requests addressed to OPI by the General Il.sseElbly and other bodies, 
particularly for filiYlS and photographic exhi-bits in support of various United 
Jations causes, 

G. \Vith regard to para[?;raph 47 of the report of the Secretary -General (J./33/146), V 

concerning radio broadcasts directed at South Africa, he pointed out that, at the 
current time, programmes produced by the 8adio Service v!ere beamed into southern 
Africa by 12 national broadcasting organizations at the rate of a~proximately 
six hours per day; eiL;ht additional broaclcastin:; organizations used material 
prepared by OPI in their mm programmes directed ::1t southern _\frica, 

7. 'rhe report devoted much attention to the activities of the Centre for :0conomic 
ancl Social Infornmtion (C.SSI), \vhich ivas entrusted >rith the task of co~ordinating 



!\./SPC/33/STI. 42 
::..::nc;lish 
Pa,se 4 

(J:r • .'\katani) 

all OPI' s actions and activities in the field of economic and social information as 
a complement to its co·-ordinating role as secretariat of the Joint United .cJations 
Information Comnittee o 

8 o In conclusion, he referred to the statement made by the re:t=,resentative of 
Israel the previous HeG.nesday. r.rhe document referred to by that representative did 
not fall \·Tithin the scope of normal OPI activities o It had been :r~repared pursuant 
to General '\.ssembly resolution 32/40 D of 2 December 1977, concernin~ the question 
of Palestine~ in which the General _\s sembly requested the Secretary -General to 
establish 1v-itl1in the Secretariat a special unit on Palestinian rights Hhich 1wuld 
prepare, under t~1e guidance of the Committee on the II:xercise of the Inalienable 
Rights of the Palestinian People, studies and publications relatinc; to the 
inalienaiJle ri~hts of the Palestinian people, T~1e Secretary.-General had complied 
;rith that request, as he Has required to do under the provisions of Article 98 of 
the Charter, and ~1e did not feel that it uould be appropriate to reply to the 
various points raised by the representative of Israel in the context of a~enda 
item 77 o 

9 o !'ir o V..:~LD~HIL'U·l~ (Philippines) recalled that the item entitled ;Co·~operation and 
assistance in the application and improvement of national information and mass 
co:rmmnication systems for social pro.rsress and development.; had been placed on the 
a3enda of the General Assembly in 1976 and that the Assembly, on the proposal of the 
members of AS!:CJLJ, comprising Indonesia, Falaysia, the Philippines, Sin~apore and 
Thailand, had then adopted resolution 31/130, drmring attention to the need for the 
united ,lations systelil to endeavour to promote co~operation and assistance for the 
establishment of clevelopPJ.ent of national information and mass CO[tlmunication systems 
so that the benefits of mass communication technology should be enjoyed not only by 
a few· nations but elsa by developine; countries o The members of ASE!Q had pointed 
out at that time that a number of basic questions should be considered: hmv- to 
inte.srate cornmunication technology and systems into a country 1 s development plan, 
1-rhat the exTJected benefits uere and what difficulties Here involved in their 
implementation, and hmv to assess the measures necessary to overcome those obstacles 
and to evaluate progress. In addition, they had referred to the need to develop 
and improve channels in order to disseminate the benefits of mass communication, 
It w2s nou re:o;arded as appropriate to drau up a model plan for solvine; those 
problems vrithout infrine;in:; the sovereignty of i ~ember States. 

10. It 11as important for developine; countries to understand the nature of mass 
communication technolorsy and the effects it could have on their societies. llember 
States should therefore develop and select nrogrammes Hhich Here best suited to 
their needs. In turn, the United Tations and other international organizations 
should increasE: their assistance to developing countries in that area. It was 1-1ith 
that in mind that the five delegations of the Association of Southeo:8ast Asian 
=Jations ·~ Indonesia, ; Ialaysia 0 the Philippines, Singapore and Thailand . ., '.Tere 
submitting, in the hope that t;1e Committee ;rould adopt it by consensus, t:1e draft 
resolution contained in docmnent A/SPC/33/L.21, all the preambular paragraphs of 
1-1i1icl1 ~¥ere derived from resolution 31/139 of 16 December 197~. 

I,,. 



/ 
A/SPC/33/SR.42 
Ent;lish 
Page 5 

ll. Mr. SURYOKUSUMO (Indonesia) said that document A/33/144 provided an 
excellent background for the Committee's work, in that it took stock of the 
work that had been done in the field of communications and raised a number of 
important questions. Chapter II, sections D, F, G, I, end J, ur.d cl~pt€rs 
III and IV of the report were particularly relevant to agenda item 77 (a). 
His delegation welcomed the adoption by consensus of the draft resolution 
inviting the Director-General of UNESCO to hold consultations vrith a vie'" 
to providing more co-operation to the developing countries in that field and 
organizing an intergovernr:1ental meeting to propose systematic machinery 
for the assessment of needs and the co-ordination on such co-operation. 

12. His delec;ation also vrelcomed the adoption by consensus of another 
resolution authorizing the Director-General of UNESCO to take action to 
promote its policies, infrastructure and training activities in the field 
of communications and encourage better use o~ the media for social ends, 
including the convening of the intergovernmental conferences on corr®unication 
policies. His delegation noted the will expressed by the industrialized 
countries during the tvrentieth session of the General Conference of UNESCO 
to increase their co-operation with developing countries in the field of 
communication. In order for the developing countries to receive the benefits 
of such co-operation, it was necessary to draw up a model plan that would be 
sufficiently flexible to take into account the different political, economic 
and social systems in each country. Accordingly, the United Nations system 
and other international organizations should adopt criteria to resolve the 
disparities and inequities between developed and developing countries in the 
field of mass cow~unications and should take effective steps to ensure that all 
strata of society had access to that technology and scientific knowledge. They 
could also assist in the formulation of national policies and plans in the 
field of communications and the establishment of national, regional and 
international communication councils, and could formulate guidelines and 
objectives to assist the developing countries in implementin~ the principles 
of the new international economic order in the field of information. 

13. 'l'he developing countries would also like the United Nations and other 
international crganizations to assist them in training specialized personnel, 
especially in the areas of communice"tion usat~e, university teaching and some 
sectors of production, and in establishing national research and documentation 
centres, international systems for the production and exchange of educational, 
scientific and cultural programmes and a training centre for television and 
radio personnel. The United Nations could intensify its research and evaluation 
activities and ensure dissemination of the results to developing countries. 

14. 'I'he United Nations system and other international organizations might 
consider arranging a system which would enable developing countries to disseminate 
news nationally or to establish national or regional news agencies or consortiums: 
they might carry out a study on ways of improving exchanges of information among 
developing countries and on the preparation and distribution of cultural and 
scientific infor~ation material designed to give children and young people a 
better understanding of the political, economic and social realities of their 
countri~s. 

I . .. 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Page 6 

(!!lr. Suryokusumo, Indonesia) 

15. Those various activities could serve as a framework of reference for the 
elaboration of national, regional and international strategies with a view to 
settin~ up a common infrastructure which, while taking into account the 
interests of each country in the field of information, would enable developing 
countries Generally to make progress in their over-all development. 

16. In order to meet the needs of developing countries, a number of priorities 
should be established. The first w-as equitable access by all nations to 
communication technology, which was a prerequisite for the establishment of a new 
international economic rrder. It -vms equally important to :'~-"'.r-,.rantee the 
developing countries increased access to and participation in the communication 
media, 1rhich currently operated almost exclusively for the benefit of a small 
number of privilep;ed countries, and to ensure that the existing inequity betveen 
the rural sectors in the field of information was reduced; it was essential to 
tackle those problems by offerine; effective solutions that might later be improved 
upon when developine; countries were able to formulate and improve national 
communication policies. 

17. A third priority was the development of mass communication systems to 
facilitate the formulation of over~all development plans integrating in a coherent 
whole the various factors of social change, among vThich communication was of prime 
importance. 

lB. Developing countries themselves needed to co-ordinate their information 
policies at the governmental, professional and academic levels and to make over-all 
national development the sole goal of those policies. T~ey needed to encourage 
studies to determine needs, priorities and necessary revisions with regard to the 
transfer of technology. They needed to evaluate the influence of international 
communication factors on the cultural identity of the nation and to supervise 
their effects, while at the same time ensurinc that their communication policies 
and information services were compatible with international agreements and with 
prevailing world levels of technology. Lastly, they must consider the socio­
cult"L:ral importance of communication and put the information media at the service 
of education by promoting the dissemination of knowledge relating to progress in 
all fields. 

19. One of the main obstacles to the attainment of those goals -vras the high cost 
of new communication technology. The developing countries needed modern 
information systems that were inexpensive and suited to their individual needs. 
They also needed sldlled personnel for research, policy-maldne; and project 
execution in the field of information. National training centres should therefore 
avoid wasting material and human resources, raise the level of their instructi•n, 
offer post-graduate courses and seminars and co-ordinate their activities in 
order to form a nucleus of experts that would be placed at the disposal of all 
the countries. Applied communication research must seek answers to a number of 
questions that were of decisive importance to developing countries, such as the 
influence of the media on the moulding of public opinion in the context of 
development: how to retain and use traditional forms of cultural expression in that 
context: the impact of new technologies on developine; countries~ and the potential 

I . .. 



li./SPC/33/SR.42 
Enclish 
Po..[~e '"{ 

(Nr. Suryokusomo <' Indonesia) 

uses of various information technoloe;ies for formal or informal education in 
developing countries. 

20. At present~ developinr; countries 1-Tere not equipped to generate and disseminate 
information. The greater part of the news concernine; them 1-ms therefore produced 
by ac;encies >'lhich were not situated in developing co~ntries and which too- often 
111isrepresented events in those countries and their aspirations and motivations. 
Developing countries could not tolerate continued dependence on information 
channels representing alien interests, and they must therefore seek to equip 
themselves with systems of their own which uould be capable of supplyinc; effective 
and obJective information. To that end, they must concentrate on enhancinc; their 
ilill to achieve proc;ress ~ equippinc; themselves with institutional mechanisms to 
harmonize their economic, cultural, scientific and technological policies and 
increasing the capacity of their information systems, gearing thern to national and 
regional needs and integrating them at both the technical and the progrrum'le levels. 

21. That process of intee;ration and of enhancing the national 'trill required a 
sustained effort and the participation of all the population. As yet, developing 
countries had neither the means nor the mechanisms to convey to the population, and 
especially to youth, the information which alone could give them a better 
understanding of the political, economic and social realities of their countries 
and of international problems. 

22. In conclusion, he hoped that the United Nations, its specialized agencies and 
Member States 't'Tould persevere in their efforts to promote recognition of the needs 
of developing countries with regard to information and that they would provide 
those countries vith further assistance in that field. 

23. Mr. ALVAREZ SANCHEZ (Cuba) said he 1-ms pleased that a question of such 
importance as the decolonization of information had been referred to the Special 
Political Committee. His delegation wished first of all to pay tribute to the work 
done by the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. The 
report submitted by the Director-General of UNESCO pursuant to General Assembly 
resolution 31/139 was a valuable contribution to an understanding of the problems 
involved and subsequent consideration of action to solve them. 

24. The right of peoples and individuals with regard to information had been one 
of the international community's major concerns for over 15 years. During that 
time, the development of communication technology had been equalled only by the 
strengthening of the munopoly exercised in that field by the capitalist countries 
and the transnational agencies under their control, vlj_ile tl:ere h'"'rl l:f'Pn increRsinp: 
UY"Pr:_siness on the nart of develorinrr countries, Fhich •rere not sfltisfied to remain 
mere receivers of imposed ideolo,c;ical and cultural patterns. 

25. ~he f~ct thRt ChRnrres in the existinrr information order vere an in~ortRnt 
fs.ctor for the econo!"_ic nror"ress of rievelonirw countries "JR.rl hPen reco""nj zed rw 
e nu.,ber of sTJecic-d !T'eetin,"'s anti cnnferences _ i:ncluciinrr the "'iftb C:onf'erence of 
Heads of State or Government of Non-Alifned Countries, held at Colorr:bo in 107(') ~ f1nc 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Pae;e 8 

(Hr. Alvarez Sm>:chez" Cuba) 

• 

by the t1inisters for Foreign Affairs of the Group of 77 during their meeting at 
United Nations Headquarters in September 1978, when they had emphasized that the 
establishment of a nevr international economic order and the establishment of a new 
world information order were closely linked. However, it was to be fcnred that, 
where information was concerned, the developed countries would display the same 
lack of will to achieve results that constituted the main obstacle to progress in 
economic nesotiations. 

26. There was a glaring imbalance in the field of information, both quantitatively 
and from the point of view of content, as the representative of Tunisia had 
conclusively sho-vm with the help of statistics in his recent statement to the 
Committee. That was why the future deler,ation supported the efforts exerted by 
the United Hations and UNESCO to achieve cultural decolonization and any action 
designed to enable developin~ countries to equip themselves with a technological 
infrastructure in the field of information that would allow them to make their 
voices heard at the international level. 

27. His delegation did not underestimate the difficulty of the task. ftny 
dialogue with the transnational monopolies, which were only concerned with 
increasing their power and their profits, would prove arduous. The developing 
countries should therefore concentrate as a matter of priority, on fo:ndnc; a united 
front and beginning a dialogue >·rith those powers on ~n equal footing. Althcugh the 
United Nations and UNESCO >vere the most appropriate forums for the conduct of 
negotiations on the subject, the efforts exerted by the non-aligned movement and by 
various organizations and groupings of developing countries, and the exercise by 
eech country of its sovereign right to decide what kind of information it wanted 
to disseminate and receive, were all valid contributions to the fight for the 
establishment of a ne-vr world information order. 

28. Since the Intergovernmental Conference on Communication Policies in Latin 
America and the Caribbean, organized by UNESCO in Costa Rica in 1976" it was 
expressly recognized that access to all cultural property was a. fundamental human 
right __ and that the preparation of plans and programmes for the extensive and 
positive use of the infurmation media within the context of development policies 
was the joint responsibility of the members of society and the E3tate, exercised 
under State supervision. 

29. Cuba had much experience of the role which the organs of information could 
play in mobilizing peoples and in enhancing their awareness and their cultural 
development, when those organs responded to their legitimate aspirations. Durinp, 
its vigorous struggle against the plots -threats, blackmail and economic blockade -
hatched by United States imperialism, Cuba had found in the information media 
valuable allies -vrhich had enabled it to impress on its people the need for certain 
military or economic measures, to make its views known to them and to urge them 
to show solidarity with the just causes of other peoples. That would not have been 
the case if the organs of information had been motivated only b~r shabby 
commercial considerations. 

/ ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Pap;e 9 

(~~__:_ Al-c_f!:_rez SB:_n_chez c.._Cuba) 
30. Hm·rever satisfied it might be with its policy, Cuba was aware that no 
country could live in isolation and that exchanges in the field of communications 
were a necessity in modern times. For such exchanges to take place, however, 
the developin,n; countries must have an adequate infrastructure, press agencies 1 

international rates must be within their means~ freouencies in the electro-magnetic 
spectrum for space communications must be allocated equitably_ anu 
those countries must be able to use communications satellites and, needless to 
say, must have skilled personnel. 

31. His delegation noted Hith satisfaction that the developin.o; countries already 
had such entities as the Press A~encies Pool, the Intergovernmental Information 
Co-ordination Board, the Broadcasting Co-operation Committee and the Committee of 
"'elPcnrnlmic8,tions ,-,:·ncrts _ ..,_ll creatpc1 1-,v t11c non--::>li,.nec rocver·'ent" "hic'1 l1Pc'1. 

also instituted a system of bilateral and multilateral exchanGes. Those 
entities and also the regional communication bodies set up by the Caribbean, 
Arab and Asian countries, showed that the developine countries realized the need 
to co-operate and to ~ool their resources. 

32. His delegation was sure that the Committee's discussions would lead to the 
adoption of constructive resolutions, and wished to stress the need to continue 
to make in~depth studies of information problems and to include the question of 
information, as a priority item in the agenda for the next session of the 
General Assembly. It w·ished, lastly, to reaffirm its conviction that the 
decolonization of information uas a priority requirement of modern times. 
Consistent and responsible use of the mass media to promote development, peace, 
international security, understanding among peoples, and to oppose war-mongering~ 
racist and neo-colonialist factions was a legitimate and inalienable right for 
the developing countries, which alone could enable them to preserve their 
national identity and exercise their sovereignty to the full. 

33. I-ilr. PABON (Venezuela) said that his country 1-relcomed the adoption by the 
UNESCO General Conference of the Declaration of Fundamental Principles Governing 
the Contribution of the Hass Media to Strengthening Peace and International 
Understanding, to Promotin~ Human Rights and to Combating 1·Tar Propaganda, 
Racialism and Apartheid. That Declaration supplemented and reinforced the body 
of instruments relating to the exercise of freedom of opinion, expression and 
information, including the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and the 
International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, adopted earlier by the 
Hembers of the United Nations. 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
En[';lish 
Page 10 

(~.1r. }'e.ton, Ver::::zuela) 

34. The Constitution of Venezuela expres~ly prohibited war propaganda, the use of 
anonymity, offences against public morals and incitement to law-breaking and, in 
its preamble, stressed the need to promote peace and respect for human rights, in 
particular the right freely to express opinions through the mass media without 
prior censorship. His country had also enacted a law governing the exercise of 
the profession of journalism, which strengthened and guaranteed freedom of 
expression. It was opposed to all State interference in information activities and 
advocated legal protection for informants. 

35. At the international level, his country was helping to find solutions which 
would guarantee freedom of expression, the right of peoples to defend themselves 
against any violation of their national integrity, and the right of individuals to 
defend themselves against any impediment to their freedom of conscience. In order 
to protect peonles from a flood of information vrhich inculcated alien values in 
them and threatened their national identity, it >ms necessary, as the President of 
Venezuela had pointed out at the first Interp,overnmental Conference on Communications 
Policies in Latin America and the Hest Indies, held in Costa Rica in 1976, to drmr 
up international rules guaranteeing objectivity of information and safeguardin~ 
freedom of opinion, Hhich could not be exercised simply at the whim of governments, 
of international or national capital, or of professional c;roups. Similarly, 
international press agencies must not, on the basis of a misconception of freedom 
of information, be left to decide vrhat information should be disseminated. 

36. At the UNESCO conference held in Costa Rica, Nairobi and Bogota, and at the 
General Conference which had just taken place in Paris, Venezuela had not supported 
the resolutions and recommendations advocating State intervention in information 
activities, because it believed that national communications policies must be based 
on the principles of freedom of thought and respect for individual and social 
rights. 

37. The information disseminated on developing countries by the international 
press gave a distorted picture of the situation in those countries, and the major 
newspapers and audiovisual media in the industrialized world made no mention of 
their struggles, their efforts and their legitimate economic demands. It uas 
therefore essential to talce concrete }Jractical measures to institute an equitable 
and effective 1wrld information order. That Hould, of course, be an arduous tasl\: 
but it could be accomplished, and the technical and economic means of accomplishing 
it Here known to all. 

38. The United Nations and its specialized agencies should review and revise the 
philosophical and theoretical bases of information in terms of the influence it 
could have on people 1 s social, cultural, political and economic development. If 
the existinr: imbalance in communications was to be remedied.) the technical 
infrastructure of the third worlcl countries, which was at present inadequate as far 
as transmission and resources were concerned, must be strengthened. 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Pae;e 11 

(¥~. Pabon, Venezuela) 

39. His country fully supported the efforts being made to broaden the circulation 
of information and international exchanges, particularly in Latin America, and to 
provide easier access to information by establishing regional agencies to supplement 
the information disseminated by international press and information agencies, 
without restricting the activities of the latter. His country's interest in that 
question had prompted it to participate in the establishment of a new Latin 
American press agency which would soon start operating. ~lention should also be 
made of the recent creation in Caracas of the 1;Asociaci6n Latinoamericana de 
Investigadores de la Comunicaci6n", whose main objective was to create the necessary 
conditions for putting an end to colonialism in the field of information in Latin 
America, devise regional communications policies, improve existing techniques and 
contribute to the establishment of a new world information order. 

40. The circulation of information was not a result of development but a 
prerequisite for development. Venezuela's national plan therefore contained 
objectives, strategies and programmes which should enable it to design a national 
cownunications system and establish training programmes with a multidisciplinary 
approach, keeping abreast of technological developments. 

41. In view of the importAnce of information in acquainting international public 
opinion with the objectives of the Organization, the United Nations Office of 
Public Information must be expanded so that it could perform its task satisfactorily. 
In that connexion, he stressed the need to increase the amount of information 
available in Spanish~ as that language was spoken by more than 300 million people 
throughout the world. He congratulated the Office of Public Information on the 
tremendous amount of work it had done in recent years, and also welcomed the 
increase in the number of United Nations Information Centres. 

42. In conclusion, he reiterated his country's support for all measures designed 
to promote freedom of information and the establishment of the new vrorld information 
order in the interests of universal solidarity and peace. 

43. ttr. SENGHOR (Senegal) said that his country, which had a long tradition of 
freedom of the press, felt that the international community, with its diversity of 
cultures and civilizations, could no longer be satisfied with partial and 
incomplete sources of information. Even if objectivity, like all ideals, was 
unattainable, the journalist should still show professional conscientiousness and 
intellectual integrity. Freedom of information must not be a privilege of the few. 
Defence of freedom of information could not be placed on an equal fuoting with 
defence of a de facto monopoly. As the Minister of Education of the Republic of 
Senegal had stated at the twentieth session of the General Conference of UNESCO in 
Paris, subordination of the news agencies of developing countries to the press of 
the developed countries was inadmissible. 

44. Since freedom of information \vas an extension of freedom of thought, Senegal 
encouraged and promoted the creation and existence of newspapers and periodicals 
which were a true and acknowledged reflection of all political, ideological and 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Page 12 

(Mr. Senghor, Senegal) f_ 

cultural trends in the country. That proliferation of newspapers was simply a 
reflection of the spirit of democracy to which the people of Senegal were 
profoundly attached and which they intended to safeGuard. 

45. At the international level, the spirit of fraternity prevailing among 
journalists should be encouraged, in order to ensure better ne1rs-gathering and, 
consequently, better information. In that regard, all rivalry between national 
agencies and world agencies should be avoided, and every effort made to strengthen 
honest and sincere co-operation among them. He expressed satisfaction at the 
creation of the Press Agencies Pool of Non-Aligned Countries, under a decision 
taken at the Conference of Foreign Ministers of Non-Alie;ned Countries, held at 
Lima in August 1975, as well as the spirit which had prevailed at the meeting of 
Information Hinisters and news agency representatives from 62 countries, held at 
New Delhi in 1976. The Press Agencies Pool of Non-Aligned Countries at present 
comprised some 40 national agencies, some of vThich acted as regional exchange 
centres. 

46. In spite of the immense progress made in the use and improvement of mass 
communications the fact remained that in no fewer than some 40 developing 
countries, less than 5 per cent of the population had access to a newspaper; 
in over 60 developing countries, more than half the population had no radios, and 
30 developing countries still had no television service. The e;ap between 
developed countries and the rest of the world in mass comraunications was therefore 
considerable, and much still remained to be done. 

47. Since information was a social need, and since culture and communications 
played a major role in the country's economic and social development, Senegal was 
determined to work and co-operate to ensure that communications served the interests 
of social progress and development. That obviously meant that a ne1-T information 
policy, supporting the just cause of the struge;le against racial discrimination and 
all forms of colonialism, must be defined. The developing countries eagerly 
awaited the decolonization of information. 

48. Mr. MillS (Jamaica) said that the establishment of a more equitable and 
balanced information system was of great importance, particularly for the 
developing countries. Those countries realized that by expressing their 
dissatisfaction with the present situation they ran the risk of being misunderstood, 
but their efforts in that area should be seen as part of a broader movement to 
establish their rightful place in the cultural, political and economic life of the 
world community. It was part of the process of their liberation from forms of 
domination vThich had deep historical roots, a process which had bee;un •rith their 
strue;gle for political independence, and then for the establishment of the new 
international economic order. 

49. As information matters stood, the peoples of the developing countries were 
forced to see the world throue;h the eyes of the Hestern news agencies. The news 
they received -.;vas superficial or irrelevant, or marred by ethnocentric bias. It 
tended to undermine indigenous cultures and value systems. Furthermore, the main 
ne-vrs agencies treated news as a commodity rather than as a social good, and ir:;nored 
the achievements of the third world countries in the matter of develo~ment. 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Page 13 

(Mr. Mills. Jamaica) 

50. At the recent General Conference of UNESCO, the Hinister of Education of 
Jamaica, reaffirming his country's belief in a free press, had stated that 
freedom was not synonymous with licence, and that half truths were not a substitute 
for responsible reporting. 

51. The Jamaican delegation felt that it was a serious mistake to represent the 
issue of news and information as an area of conflict between two groups of 
countries. There were a number of issues of considerable importance relating to the 
role of the media, the reporting of the news, and the compilation and availability 
of information within \Testern industrialized countries. If one could judge from 
current events those countries would have to face, in years to come, new problems 
relating to the rights of individuals to their privacy, the interests of minorities 
in respect of the reporting of news, and the balance between the interests of 
different sectors of the populations of countries., problems which called into 
question the role of all institutions -major corporations, trade unions, religious 
groups, the media and the Governments themselves. \tlith advancing technology in 
the field of information, and with the emergence of new perceptions concerning 
internal social factors, the rights of people and global relationships there, 
would inevitably be new attitudes towards the role of information in the public 
interest. 

52. One of the major obstacles to the establishment of a new international economic 
order was the lack of adequate public knowledge of the issues involved, the lack of 
understanding of the positions and attitudes of developing countries, and the 
negative attitudes in many quarters with regard to the aspirations of those 
countries. In spite of the particular problems involved, a special effort towards 
achieving a real public understanding of those matters was vital. It was no 
coincidence that the industrialized countries, which had given the firmest support 
to the concept of the new international economic order, were those in which a 
meaningful dialogue existed between the governraent and the public on issues relating 
to national and global development. 

53. In order to achieve the fundamental changes they were seekin~ in the global 
information system, the developing countries had a great deal to do. Apart from 
improving their own information systems, they must join together and establish 
links with other third world countries in various related areas. The group of 
non-aligned countries was already working in that direction, for example by creating 
a ne~vs agency pool and adopting various measures to further co-operation in the 
field of broadcasting. The developed countries should also contribute very 
actively to a balanced and equitable flow of information. The measures taken by 
the developing countries to ensure respect for their interests and the interests of 
their peoples would depend on the attitude and responses of the developed countries. 

54. The United Nations system had a major role to play in that connexion. Of 
course, its activities could only be part of a broader effort in which the 
Governments of member countries, the media, and educational and other institutions 
-vrould participate. However, the Organization itself should strengthen and expand 
its action aimed at mobilizing public opinion in su~port of the great causes to 
which it was committed: that clearly presupposed that it should have the necessary 
budgetary provisions for that purpose. 

I ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Page 14 

(Mr. Hills, Jamaica) 

55. He expressed gratitude to ITU and UNESCO for their work in the field of mass 
communications. Hhile noting the agreement reached at the General Conference, 
he stressed the differences and difficulties that still lay in the path of 
establishine; a truly equitable system of global information and communication. 
Also, so long as such an information system reflected primarily the values and 
interests of a fe1v countries and a few peoples, the developine; countries -vrould 
pursue resolutely their efforts to achieve the fundamental chane;es they desired. 

56. !1r. SCHUTZE (Federal Republic of Germany), speakins on behalf of the nine 
member States of the European Economic Community on ae;enda item 77 (a) and (b), 
said that the Nine welcomed the adoption by consensus at the twentieth session 
of the General Conference of UNESCO of the Declaration of Fundamental Principles 
concerning the Mass Hedia, and recalled that the Nine had taken an active part in 
the draftins of that Declaration" Indeed 0 they attached particular significance 
to the reaffirmation of the right to freedom of opinion, expression and information 
and to the recognition of those principles, vrhich were an integral part of human 
rights and a vital factor in the strengthening of peace and international 
understanding. In order to correct existing inequalities in the flow of information 
with and among developing countries, it 1-ras important to establish a ne\! equilibrium 
and greater reciprocity, taking care to maintain the plurality and diversity of 
information. 

57. The Secretary-General had submitted as document A/33/144 a report by the 
Director-General of UNESCO concerning co-operation and assistance in the 
application and improvement of national information and mass communication 
systems for social progress and development. In 1961, the Director-General 
of UNBSCO had submitted a first report. which had been discussed by various 
United Nations bodies in 1962. That report had been based on two premises which 
were still valid, namely that the existence of adequate mass comn1unication 
facilities vras a prerequisite for freedom of information, and that the development 
of information was an integral part of economic development as a whole and 
consequently could be aided by technical assistance funds. Such financing was 
especially necessary because the under-developed countries were seeking to attain 
in a matter of years a level of achievement which it had taken the developed 
countries centuries to attain. 

58. The highly developed information systems in the industrialized countries, 
particularly in some of them, were a historical fact which explained the existing 
gap bet1v-een the industrialized and the developing countries in the field of 
information, a e;ap that might grow unless concerted action vras taken. 

59. The content and form of information must be adapted to the needs of specific 
regions. So far, the developing countries had not been able to play an a~tive role 
either in collecting or in disseminating information, and in that connexion the 
Nine welcomed the fact that the developing countries had begun to take practical 
steps to establish their own information media both on a national basis and through 
various forms of co-operation. 

60. The objective of any international information system should be to make the 
dissemination of information freer, wider and better balanced by stren~thening the 

/ ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
Ene;lish 
Page 15 

(Mr. Schutze, Federal Republic 
of _0erY'1any) 

machinery of international comn1unications, and that required better co-operation 
among the developing countries themselves and with the industrialized countries. 
The members of the European Economic Community had already made substantial 
contributions in that field, both bilaterally and under the Lome Convention, and 
they were prepared to continue their efforts in that direction. In order to be 
fully effective, an international effort aimed at correcting existing inequalities 
must also have the co-operation of the media themselves and the support of the 
public in the developed countries. The media in those countries must keep the 
public better informed about the aspirations, problems and policies of the 
developing countries, and to that end, journalists from industrialized countries 
should have better and freer access to information sources in developing countries. 

61. The Nine were convinced that the establishment of a more just and equitable 
world economic order required better understanding of the positions and problems 
of other nations. Ignorance was a source of indifference and prejudice. 
Comprehensive and equitable international information and mass communication 

• . systems were essential to the improven:ent of understanding and co·-operation in 
all aspects of international relations. 

62. Turning to agenda item 77 (c) and speaking as the representative of the 
Federal Republic of Germany, he expressed his delegation 1 s appreciation to the 
Assistant Secretary-General for Public Information and to the staff of the Office 
of Public Information for the report submitted by the Secretary-General on United 
Nations public information policies and activities, for their efforts to translate 
into practice the basic policy of tne United Nations in that field, and for the 
way in which they performed their duties. The impartial and objective presentation 
of the work of the Organization, taking into account the positions and opinions 
of all Member States, was the best way of serving the common interest and enhance 
understanding of the work and purposes of the United Nations. 

63. The increased membership and the new tasks and responsibilities of the 
United Nations implied a substantial reorientation of the activities of the Office 
of Public Information. Taken together with the ranid development of modern 
communication techniques, those new demands could not be met without an increase 
of funds. However, the gro-vrth rate for information activities within the United 
Nations budget would remain limited. It was therefore of particular urgency that 
past priorities should be re-examined in order to meet new priorities. A greater 
mobility of the staff of the Office of Public Information would considerably 
facilitate the task of progra1nme reorientation. 

64. Increased efforts 1-rere necessary to ensure co-operation -vli th public and 
private information institutions, educational institutions and non-governmental 
organizations in the dissemination of programmes and activities in the 
industrialized countries in order to ensure, in particular, a greater cost-sharing 
by the various users of programn1es and publications. In those countries which 
did not have or did not yet have sufficient information infrastructures, the Office 
of Public Information must necessarily play a more direct role and provide practical 
assistance in the building up of information infrastructures. 

/ ... 



A/SPC/33/SR.42 
English 
Page 16 

(~;Ir. Schutze, Federal Republic of Germany) 

65. The information centres had an increasingly important role to play, 
particularly in the developing countries, where the majority were situated. They 
knew best regional and national information needs and they could respond to 
specific demands better than Headquarters. The Information Support Section should 
be in a position to respond more fully to the increasing number of information 
requests by the centres. 

66. As far as radio and visual services were concerned, his delegation appreciated 
the streamlining of activities, the replacement of short-wave radio broadcasts by 
more adequate means of transmission and the priority given to supplying more news 
services to television and radio stations in the developing countries. 

67. The growin~ importance of economic and social issues for the United Nations 
and the multiplication of organs dealing with those issues made it imperative to 
rigorously streamline and co-ordinate information activities in that field. The 
Centre for Economic and Social Information (CESI) seemed best suited for that task. 
The entire United Nations system needed a more concerted and harmonized approach 
to the definition of information priorities and the division of labour. In that 
respect, it was to be hoped that under ACC, the Joint United Nations Information 
Committee (JUNIC) could assume a reinforced role in policy-making. In particular, 
the Secretary-General and the Office of Public Information should be given greater 
responsibility to determine guidelines for co-ordination within the United 
Nations system as a whole. 

68. Sumrning up the position of his Government on the wide range of information­
related questions~ he said that there vrere hro distinct problems. In the North­
South relationship, the unequal capacity for dissemination of information was 
becoming more prominent. The aim must be to ensure that the world was not divided 
into information suppliers and information consumers. In the East-Hest 
relationship, there were on both sides fully developed information systems which had 
all the financial and technological means for world-wide news distribution. v!hat 
was needed to achieve reciprocity was a free circulation of information, an 
objective set by the States signatories to the Final Act of the Conference on 
Security and Co-operation in Europe. The Federal Republic of Germany urged the 
pursuit of that aim by all the signatories. As his Minister for Foreign Affairs 
had stated at the twentieth session of the General Conference of UNESCO, there was 
not too much freedom of the press in the world, but too little. 

69. Mr. DJELOU (Togo) commended the General Assembly decision to refer to the 
Special Political Committee the question of information in all its aspects. 

70. The information sector had not been immune to the harmful effects of the 
imbalance between the developed and the developing countries, and for several 
years the third world had constantly cautioned the industrialized countries about 
the gap between the two groups of countries in all fields. Far from getting 
better, however, the situation had grown worse. The assistance of all kinds 
granted by the industrialized countries to developing countries had failed to 
bridge the ever-widening gap. The third world had concluded that the problem could 
be solved only through a radical change in the basic approach to international 

I . .. 



A/SPC/33/SR ,lQ 
English 
Page 17 

(Hr. Djelou, Togo) 

relations. The appeal by the developing countries to the industrialized countries 
seemed to have been heard, and the latter r;roun had agreed to participate in recent 
conferences on the establishment of a new economic order. The third world was 
be~inning to cmapaign for the establishment of a new order for information. Some 
had wondered 1-rhether the third world was not trying to do two things at once. The 
question seemed all the more relevant as the meagre results achieved during the 
recent international conferences on the establishment of a ne"r economic order had 
de111onstrated that the rich countries vrere not at all prepared to give up the 
privileges derived from the exploitation of the poor countries. However, the 
developing countries had no choice. As the Tunisian Hinistry of Information had 
rightly stated in its study contained in document A/SPC/33/L. 5, ;,the establishment 
of a ne-u world order for information nm-r appears to be an indispensable corollary 
of the new international economic order':. There were even those vho felt, like 
President Senghor of Senegal, that the ne-vr order for information should precede the 
neu economic order. His delegation went even further and considered that the 
concept of a nell economic order should be extended simultaneously to all fields of 
development, because it would be futile to attempt to resolve through a series of 
measures the problems posed by the imbalance between the developed and the 
developing countries. 

71. The alienating influence of the developed countries on third world countries 
in the economic, social and cultural fields hampered the smooth development of 
third-world countries. The time had come to use information as an instrument of 
national development and genuine international co-operation. To that end, it was 
imperative that the developing countries should persevere in their efforts to 
establish a better international society, based on justicec mutual understanding 
and friendly co~operation among nations. At the same time, they should continue 
their efforts to ensure the effective functioning of the agencies they had 
established in the information sector, such as the Intergovernmental Co-·ordination 
Council on Information and the Hass l1edia, the Co--ordination Cornmi ttee of the Press 
Agencies Pool, the Comnittee of Coo-operation of the Broadcasting Or.:;anizations and 
the Conmittee of International Telecownunications Experts of the Non-Aligned 
Countries. 

The meeting rose at 1.25 p.m. 


